NEWINGTON TOWN PLAN AND ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
Marchl 0,2021
Chairman Domenic Pane called the regularZoom meeting ofthe Newington Town Plan and
Zoning Commission to order at 7:00 p.m.
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I.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II.

ROLL CALL AND SEATING OF ALTERNATES
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Commissioners Present
Chairman Domenic Pane
Commissioner Michael Fox
Commissioner Garrett Havens
Commissioner David Lenares
Commissioner Stanley Sobieski
Commissioner Stephen Woods
Commissioner Hyman Braverman-A
CommissionerThomas Gill -A
Commissioner Bryan Haggerty-A
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Commissioners Absent
Commissioner Anthony Claffey
Commissioners Haggerty was seated for Commissioner Claffey
III.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
No Changes

IV.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (For items not listed on the agenda; speakers limited to
two minutes. Use the Zoom "Raise Hand" function.)

Chairman Pane: Ifthere is someone out there that would like a general comment, now is the
time.
Rose Lyons, 46 Elton Drive: I just had a comment about public participation during the public
hearing. Sometimes you ask for people to speak in favor of or opposed to, and then other times
you will also add in if they just want to make a comment or something. I find that sometimes I'm
not on either side, strongly, but 1 do have a comment to make. Is there anyway that you can
make that suggestion tonight, or take comments like that tonight? 1 would appreciate it.
Chairman Pane: Under public hearing, we have to, when there is a public hearing there are
procedures that we have to follow, so if there is a public hearing we have to ask if there is
anyone in favor or if there is anyone against, but anybody can come up and make a statement.
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Rose Lyons: Okay, because sometimes 1 know that previously you would do all three, opposed,
in favor, and just want to make a comment, so 1 guess I'll have to pick a side or decide which
one 1 want to do. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Thank you. Anyone else from the public wishing to speak?
V.

ZONING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER REPORT

Erik Hinckley: Good evening Commissioners, you all have my report in front of you. The only
substantial thing that you might be wondering about is 260 Stamm Road, at this point in time we
are continuing with the enforcement action. The tenant has hired an attorney at this point so
we'll see where this goes.
Chairman Pane: Are there any questions from the Commissioners for the Enforcement Officer?
CommissionerWoods: Just one question, on that Stamm Road issue, didn't we decide the last
time that they were in that they can't apply because they don't meet the setback? 1suppose
they can apply if they want to keep trying but they don't meet the setback, correct?
Chairman Pane: The Stamm Road, 260 Stamm Road, it was determined that they are too close
to the residential neighborhood, so it's impossible for them to comply with the new regulations,
which you and the other Commissioners came up with for the automotive use. 1 would not
encourage them to come back to us, hopefully staff is not encouraging them to do that because
it would just get denied again because they cannot meet the setback requirements.
Commissioner Woods: 1 just wanted to make sure that Erik was aware of that.
he was or not, but.

wasn't sure if

Erik Hinckley: 1 am aware of it. 1 told them that the last time they tried, 1 told him, you are
bringing me the same plan you brought in 2007 and 2008 and they were both denied, so who
knows what he is going to do.
CommissionerWoods: Okay, and we'll listen to him.
Erik Hinckley: Exactly.
Chairman Pane: Anything else Erik on your report?
Erik Hinckley: Nothing major, no.
Chairman Pane: Are there any other comments from the Commissioners? Any other
questions? Thank you Erik for the Zoning Enforcement Report.
VI.

REMARKS BY COMMISSIONERS
None
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PUBLIC HEARING
A.

Petition 09-21: Zonina Text Amendment to allow the keeDina of poultrv (Section
3.1.3.3.3.5and9.2) Newington TPZ Applicant

Chairman Pane: Why don't we go to our Town Planner, Renata, to give us a report on this.
Renata Bertotti: Good evening everybody. This application is one ofthese, 1 considerthis a low
hanging fruit, something that we can do fairly quickly to address some of the comments that
were left to me as a parting gift from my secretary, my former secretary, before she left she
made a list of things that, in her experience, she felt she had received a lot of phone calls,
questions, complaints about so making this amendment perhaps could accommodate the
existing interest in the community which is obvious that there is some interest in the community
to allow this use, as well as set specific standards to cater to the other parts of the community
that has questions or concerns, mainly keeping issues when it comes to poultry.
Poultry I defined to include chickens, turkeys and ducks, and 1 will later on address the issue of
everybody's favorite wake up alarm, roosters, and male turkeys which are prohibited as you will
see in the proposal.
The proposal, if adopted, ifthis proposal is adopted, it woutd allow poultry as an accessory use
in our residential areas. As 1 was receiving some phone calls from the residents and you know,
some of the questions were brought to my attention. One of the things that 1 am waiting to
propose is actually an amendment to my proposal to limit this to properties containing single
and two family homes and not necessarily to include apartments and condominiums. 1
overlooked that when 1 was putting this together.
If this approval is granted, the property owner will be allowed, or be able to come into our office
and apply for a simple zoning permit and as long as they can meet all of the requirements set in
these proposed zoning regulations, we would be able to sign that on the counter. So, when it
comes to this kind of use, like 1 said, there is clearly some interest in the community to allow for
this use, but then there is probably as much as an interest from people that are concerned with
how would allowing this use impact on their property. So, to address that, and those are
generally, even in my experience pretty much in all other communities that 1 worked, those are
the issues that come up. Whether or not the chicken has like proper enclosure orare we
having issues with like roaming chickens. Are there any roosters, which can be very disruptive.
What is, like how is the feed to be kept? That is important because sometime when the feed is
kept in open containers just outside it can attract rodents and mice, and then, the disposal of
waste.
So this particular amendment starts by setting standards by the number of chickens per size of
the lot. 1 have used about an acre, forty thousand square feet, there is a proposal to a lot that is
just under an acre or less, to allow six ofthese poultry animals, whether they are chickens or
ducks. For lots that are forty thousand square feet or bigger, we limit to twelve animals. As you
can see, roosters andmale turkeys are prohibited by this regulations, and then we go into
regulating the enclosure which is described to allow a certain amount, 200 square feet in an
area, which is a maximum. There has to be at least ten square feet of ground per animal, they
must be located in a rear yard. We get into setbacks, you know, under this language, the
encloser for chickens would have to be at least 25 feet from any street line, 15 feet from any
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residential dwelling whether that is the property owner's or neighbors, minimum of 5 feet from
any property line, and then the coop is to be predator proof, ventilated, water tight, it has to be
constructed at least ten feet from any property line and it has to have a minimum of three
square feet per area per animal.
We address foodand waste. Food must be in water tight, rodent proof containers. Waste
needs to be disposed off site or composted 50 feet from any property line. We talk about
human harvesting of animals and this section excludes keeping of animals as part of an
approved agricultural use within a schoolhouse, museum or zoo for purposes of observation.
This also goes back to where we currently allow keeping offarm animals, which is normally
somebody today, if they wanted to have six chickens on their property, they would have to come
to you for a special exception, they would have to have a property that is a minimum of five
acres.
1 am adding to that section and you can see that 1 added poultry here, this is going to be another
amendment to the amendment that 1 am going to propose. It should say, as poultry as allowed
under 3.3.5 which is the section that sets the standards because 1 don't wantjust to allow
poultry in this exclusion without stating that it is only allowed in residential districts including
single family, two family homes only.
So, that is the premise ofthis proposal. 1 am not, 1 did some excessive research for this actually
when 1 worked in Meriden. Wejust adopted this in 2020, in February of 2020 in Meriden. When
we looked there, we looked at a bunch of documents published by UConn, including the
guidelines for the regulations for the keeping of backyard chickens. We also looked at about 25
different regulations nationwide, but we specifically looked at regulations in Southington,
Wallingford, Cheshire, Middletown, Simsbury, Waterbury, so those are kind of local areas, local
towns where we looked at regulations that dealt with this issue.
All that being said, 1 am not particularly married to any ofthese numbers. 1 think that it is
important to consider the size of the lot when we consider the number of animals. Whether you
agree with my numbers or not, that is up for discussion, obviously. The setbacks as well, you
know, this is well researched and based on that research but if we need to tweak some of these
setbacks, 1 do not have a problem with that. 1 think it is important to have (inaudible) and
standards, whether they are the ones 1 propose or the ones we modify because that will just
make everybody, easier for everybody to get these permits and meet the standards, whatever
those standards are.
So that is my presentation on this.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Renata. 1 have a few questions, and then we will open it up to the
Commissioners for some questions, and then we will go to the public.
You designed this for poultry, so you said that this could be for ducks, for geese, for turkeys, is it
possible to design this just for chickens as a regulation?
Renata Bertotti: It is, it is, but as soon as you do that, there will be somebody who want to have
ducks.
Chairman Pane: Okay, 1 agree with you on the distance requirements, I think maybe, 1 think
they need to be a little farther away, possibly, see what the Commission and the public has to
say, there is a typo that CommissionerWoods pointed out to me, on page 23, B2, it says for
tots, it should say, for lots.
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Commissioner Sobieski: How are we going to enforce to make sure that these areas are being
maintained? How do we know, are these being cleaned one a week, twice a week, once a
month, that's my question. There was a chicken farm years ago on Willard Avenue and if the
wind was blowing the right way, you could smell that.
Another question, on the square footage ofthe lot, is that open property, or does that include
the house or any structures on the lot? Some of these lots are really small, they're like a quarter
of an acre or so, and the other question 1 have, knowing this from growing up near a farm on
Willard Avenue, that all rodents are attracted by this. Whether it's mice, rats, whatever so if
there anyway of making sure that everything is compliant. Those are my questions, 1 also agree
with Domenic that it should be more than five feet away from the property line. Thank you.
Renata Bertottti: So, the enforcement isjust like any zoning enforcement. We wouldn't be
doing a routine inspection of these properties. We would respond to complaints and then follow
up on that. Chances are when somebody goes to this kind of environment for animals, to create
enclosures and coops and feed, those are people who generally treat their animals like their
pets. 1 look at this, and 1 wonder, how is different than having a fenced in back yardwhere you
allowyou dog to go out and you know, dispose oftheir contents, and then ifthe neighbor is not
someone who cleans that, eventually you will smell something, so 1 don't really see that
enforcement is that big of a deal. 1 think right now more complicated part for me is that, since
we don't allow it, this is all prohibited by zoning, but there is a situation where some ofthese
elements are enforced by health code violations, some are enforced by the animal control,
some are by zoning. This way, when it is here, you are giving a zoning jurisdiction to the Zoning
Officer to go in and take a look at the feed container if we received a complaint from a neighbor
that somebody is leaving their food containers open. You know, we can check on that, it's a
zoning matter, it would be like any other zoning complaint. It's not going to be perfect, there will
be somebody who violates the regulations and our enforcement, but we have to go through that
enforcement process.
The size of the lot is just the size of the lot, it includes the house, it includes the garage, it
includes any building that is on it, so it's just the size of the land that this resides on.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Renata. Commissioner Sobieski, do you have any follow up
questions?
Commissioner Sobieski: What do you think about adding the regulation that the coop has to be
cleaned every two weeks?
Renata Bertotti: We can say that, 1 think that sets a standard and we will give a little handout to
everybody who gets a permit for this, that talks about the human harvesting aspect and perhaps
some standards for keeping. We can put that on that flyer and have that in the regulation. 1 just
can pretty much tell you that it is impossible for me to have a Zoning Officer who goes to every
property that has this kind of use, every other week.
Commissioner Sobieski: I'm saying that if they go out there for whatever, and they see that it
hasn't been cleaned, then you could suggest, strongly suggest that they clean it every two eeks,
once a month, whatever you decide, because then nobody can say, well, 1 didn't know.
Commissioner Fox: I think Commissioner Sobieski mentioned something about, in 3.3.5 (B) 1
think it should be a little further than that, if that could be a change in the (inaudible)
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Chairman Pane: Any other Commissioners have any questions?
Commissioner Haggerty: 1 probably should know this, but what is the difference between a
coop and an enclosure. Is a coop just a type of enclosure?
Renata Bertotti: The enclosure is the fenced in predator proof area where chickens just stroll.
Where they hang out, where they eat, where they just are, and then coop is a little like a dog
house, it's a controlled environment where they go to sleep, and lay eggs and do all this other
stuff. So, coop is much, much smaller, that is where they spend nights, and enclosure is bigger,
it's 200 square feet. It can be up to 200 square feet.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Renata. Any follow-up questions, Commissioner Haggarty?
Commissioner Haggarty: So 1 guess you wouldn't just be able to let the chickens out in your
fenced in backyard during the day if you wanted to? They need to be in this enclosure at all
times, is that correct?
Renata Bertotti: Yes. They will be confined to a fenced enclosure.
Commissioner Haggarty: Which cannot be any bigger than 200 square feet?
Renata Bertotti: Okay, and 1 think t would echo the rest ofthe Commission that 1 think it should
be a little further than 5 feet. Thank you.
Commissioner Woods: It's been a long time since 1 had chickens on a piece of property, but is
there like a minimum amount of chickens that you need to have for socialization among
themselves? Just curious, does anyone know?
Renata Bertotti: From everything that 1 found in my research, you should have at least six.
Because they are little strange creatures, they have like a pecking order and if one dies, you
can't just, it's interesting how they deal with one another. They say six is a minimum that you
should allow.
Commissioner Woods: Thank you, and 1 think it's probably time that we need to pass a
regulation to cover this. 1 would agree with the other Commissioners, maybe five feet is not
quite enough, ten probably would be a little bit better, although 1 don't know how much
difference an additional five feet is going to be, if there is a smell, even if it's twenty feet away,
but these are not like a farm. These are going to be treated as house pets in more ways than
one. Again, 1 have friends, who don't actually live in Newington, live in Wethersfield, they have
them, and unless 1 see them, you walk around to where the coop is, you would never know that
they were there. 1 think it's a good move, and 1 applaud the Planner for trying to put this in front
of us and hopefully we can move this along. If it needs to be tweaked, so be it, but hopefully we
can move it along.
Commissioner Havens: These ground rules sound really good, but what is going to be the
procedure moving forward for people who already have chicken coops or chicken enclosures in
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their yards? Are they going to be grandfathered in, will they have to meet whatever the distance
is for setbacks is that we decide on?
Renata Bertotti: So ifthey were approved under a special permit, which is a legal way to
approve this use right now, and it probably has been done for quite a while, if they have a
special permit then we wouldn't touch.
Chairman Pane: I'm sorry to interrupt you Renata, we have never approved any chickens under
special exception or any other rule. So, anybody that is out there, it would be, 1 would think they
would have to come into us and apply.
Renata Bertotti: They would come back to me. To our office and apply, yes. So in order to
legalize the use that somebody has right now they would need to come and they would need to
meet the setbacks as well. 1 will say though, for the most part, you know, people can build
elaborate things and you know, little houses on foundations, 1 suppose, but for the most part,
the enclosure is moved around the lot anyway because you know, chickens like look for little
worms and stuff like that and people will keep an enclosure in one part of the yard and then
move it like ten feet over if they have space. They rotate like that, so enclosure is generally
portable and I would imagine the coops can be portable as well, so if somebody does have this
use and it's not meeting setbacks, it should not be too problematic for this to relocate.
Chairman Pane: Any other Commissioners have any questions? Why don't we open it up to
the public and listen and see if we have anybody from the public who would like to state in favor
ofthis?
1. Public Testimonv reaardina Petition 09-21
Rose Lyons, 46 Elton Drive: 1 hit the raise hand function before hearing you say anyone in favor
of, I'm waiting for the opposed.
Chairman Pane: Next would be Margaret Banach. Can you un-mute and state your name and
address for the record?
James Krupienski: Her mike is showing active, she may be having other problems.
Chairman Pane: Anyone else wishing to speak in favor?
Mark Franz, 288 Williamstown Court: 1 am nor in favor of against, my apologies, 1 didn't know if
there was a neutral, either not in favor or opposed. Is it alright if 1 speak?
Chairman Pane: You can state your concerns and then you can tell us what way you are
leaning attheend.
Mark Franz: Thank you for your go ahead. Mr. Chairman, Members ofthe Commission and
Ms. Town Planner, 1 seem to think that having chickens overall on a lot that is 40,000 square
feet or less, 12 animals. It seems interesting at least. l think it would grow the interest in having
children in Newington who want to have pets other than dogs and cats, that isjust an initial
thought. Another thought, I'll keep it brief. Let's say 1 want to have chickens on my property,
will 1 have to pay a nominal fee of $1 .00, $5,00, $10.00, $1 5.00, $20.00, in order to have that
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legal permission for chickens, ducks, female turkeys, etc. 1 think that would be a great revenue
generator if that was possible, and as another thought Mr. Chairman, this could be a revenue
generator You are not going to obviously break people's banks, but giving them an incentive to
think once, twice, or three times before they go ahead and just carte blanche put chickens on
their property. Finally, and in closing, 1 live in a condominium where it is private property within
the Town of Newington and so, living in a condo, could 1 have six chickens or six turkeys in my
condo area. In closing, the idea since it could be a revenue generator, 1 can see that. 1 was just
wondering, in condo dwellers, could they get the chickens, turkeys, whatever, whether it is six or
twelve because the condo square footage is kind of iffy, and then finally, 1 think I'm missing the
last part, oh yes, enforcing, the Enforcement Officer, how would this affect him positively or
negatively in terms of his work load? Would he be overburdened or put him under undue
duress if you will, thank you very much for taking my questions, my theory, and 1 will listen to
you receptively. Thank you very much.
Chairman Pane: Thank you. Before we go to the next public, Renata could you answer those
questions?
Renata Bertotti: Yes. There is a fee for the zoning permit, it is $15.00, so a resident would
need to pay $15.00 when they submit an application to us. The condo question, under the
original proposal 1 actually included condos, but then, after 1 thought about it a little more, 1
decided to propose an amendment to the amendment, and actually exclude condominiums and
apartment buildings. 1 propose this use to be allowed on residential, in residentiat zones, on lots
that have a single family home or two family home. Even condos that have their own separate
lot area, even those condominiums will very likely not have sufficient space to accommodate
animals like this and secondly, it is a common property, so for us to get what we need in
permitting world, a consent of an owner, you would have to coltect all of the property owners in
your condo assodation to allow you to use the common property for this use. So rather than
creating a lot of headaches for us to try to figure out, did every condo owner sign an agreement
on this, 1 proposed that condos are excluded, at least for now. We can start with single and two
family, see how it goes in the community and then maybe we can re-visit this. By the way,
zoning regulations are a living document, they are meant to be amended frequently, so as the
situations change, we can then then consider that, but for right now 1 would advise not to include
condos in here.
The Zoning Officer, his work is probably going to be maybe heavier on the end of permitting and
original inspection, but hopefully this will take away some ofthe enforcement actions that we
now do on properties that have this kind of use illegally.
Erik Hinckley: Also Renata, some condos, their own by-laws may not allow poultry or keeping
of animals like that anyway.
Chairman Pane: Okay, thank you very much. The next, would you state your name and
address for the record?
James Krupienski: It would appear that everyone is having microphone problems this evening
Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Pane: Anyone else who is not having microphone problems, would like to speak?
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LaToya McGregor Kindler, 154 Pheasant Run: l think the problem is, folks may not be able to
talk to you guys because it is automatically set to mute. The participants, because 1 did get a
prompt thatjust popped up now that said to unmute, so that could be the issue. 1 think this is a
great initiative that is reviewed by the Town. 1 have been a resident of Newington to a little over
seven years, and my neighbor, two houses behind me, actually does raise chickens and that
sparked my interest in what the possibilities were. I'm glad that they are looking at possibly
making this happen. 1 can tell you first hand that 1 never hear her chickens and 1 think that is
because she does not have a rooster and 1 never smell anything, no foul, or anything ofthat
nature, and she actually has brought over a couple of eggs on two occasions to me as 1 was
curious, and she reached out to me and provided me with some knowledge ofthe process. 1 do
think based on some of the prior comments made by some of the Commissioners about the
spacing, the sizing, the five feet, 1 think that is something that could be extended to ten, just to
give a little more distance. My only question is, as far as the 200 square feet guidance, no more
than 200 square feet, how do you regulate that, 1 mean, how would you know that individuals
that do get this permit are compliant with that, how would you make sure that those numbers, a
minimum often square feet, 200 square feet is actually being followed through by individuals
that want to raise chickens?
Chairman Pane: Renata, if you could answer that?
Renata Bertotti: Yes, so the 200 square foot for enclosure as well as all these other installation
elements like whether or not something is ten feet from the property tine, and that, that would be
inspected once installed. So, somebody comes in, picks up a building permit, when they are
ready, when they are ready to start they call us up, Erik, the Zoning Enforcement Officer, would
go out and take a look in their yard and just make sure that they didn't build some big, fenced in
system there that exceeds what is allowed under the regulations.
Erik Hinckley: Right, and also on the zoning permit, they are going to have to draw this on the
plot plan, the location in the back yard as well.
Chairman Pane: Any other follow up questions?
Latoya MacGregor Kindler: Not at this time, 1 think much of it has been covered, but 1 really
think it is a good initiative and like Ms Renata stated prior, most people that do want to raise
chickens 1 think they are going to be conscientious about the requirements and the guidelines in
place and will be compliant with the cleaning process. 1 think this is great, 1 fully support it, and 1
hope you guys push it through. Thank you for allowing me to speak.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much.
Stephanie Winslow, 55 Robbins Avenue: 1 wanted to speak in favor of allowing chickens on
residential property. 1 have three boys that are home schooled that were actually greatly looking
forward to having their own chickens on the property, and we really hope this gets posted
through as far as allowing our boys, and our neighborhood really to experience the opportunity
that comes from raising these animals. As many of our friends in town have looked into this,
and have hoped to have these experiences with their children as they grow, we had hoped to
see these animals mostly as pets that help provide for our family. We are truly hoping to see
this passed here tonight.
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Chairman Pane: Very good. Thank you very much for your opinion.
Chris Clancey, 130 Lamplighter Lane: l appreciate your time. l actually called in for an
unrelated issue that 1 wanted to bring up. Not sure if this is the appropriate time to do so, if it's
not the appropriate time, 1 can always call back in. If it is.....
Chairman Pane: It's not related to this item?
Chris Clancey: Correct, unrelated.
Chairman Pane: We have another public participation toward the end ofthe meeting, ifyou
don't mind staying on, we certainly would like to hear what you, what concerns you have and we
can address that later in the meeting.
Chris Clancey: Okay, thank you.
James Krupienski: Just for clarification Mr. Chairman, people who spoke before, are they
allowed a second turn?
Chairman Pane: Yes 1 will allow that.
James Krupienski: Okay, just so I'm aware.
Joyce Vogel, 18 Kinnear Avenue: Mr Chairman, members ofthe Commission, this testimony is
in regards to the proposed Planning and Zoning Regulation changes to allow the raising of
poultry in Newington. 1 am opposed to such zoning changes for the following reasons: 1 . l live
near a neighbor in Newington that had chickens. They no longer have them. Overall, I'd say
they kept the chicken coop and surrounding area very clean. Unfortunately there were times
when horseflies were around my yard, which was about 150 feet from the chicken coop. l never
had horseflies in my yard prior to the neighbor having chickens. Horseflies do not know
property lines, and horseflies bite. They are a nuisance that comes from having chickens.
Number 2, chickens and otherforms of poultry can carry salmonella bacteria. This bacteria can
be deadly, especially for young children. Chicken droppings contain salmonella can be picked
up by horseflies which can then land on humans and infect them. For this reason, chickens
should not be allowed in Newington neighborhoods. There is also an odor problem, that is
number three resulting from chicken feces. If you are downwind from a chicken coop, they are
the ones that would have to put up with the small, not the owner of the chickens. Number 4, the
raising of poultry should be left to professional farmers who live on farms and know how to deal
with the problems that come with raising poultry. Thank you for your attention to this matter
and 1 hope you will vote no.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much for your opinion, appreciate it.
(Inaudible), 19 Vivian Street: I'd like to share my experience with chickens with you. First of all,
1 am opposed to this amendment to the zoning rules. My neighbor in his back yard has a
chicken coop, it is the size of a gazebo and ten feet in height and is attached to the back of his
garage. We have had an ongoing problem with noise, at one point he had a rooster that would
start making an obscene about of noise about 5:30 a.m. every day, and also hens, when they
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lay eggs make a very loud moaning noise and hens tend to lay eggs early in the morning. Also,
he had chickens, free range in the back yard, he did not keep them enclosed in an enclosure,
and chickens can fly. Several times 1 have had to call animal control because they can clear the
six foot fence that separates our properties. So if you are going to go ahead and approve the
zoning regulation, A, 1 would like to know ifthere is going to be a height requirement or
restriction for both the coop and the enclosure, 1 don't think five feet is anywhere far enough
from a property line, 1 would say probably 25 feet, and B, how are you going to enforce people
from free ranging their chickens. Also, 1 agree with the previous comments about the smell,
depending on which way the wind blows, it is definitely a factor and tends to attract all kinds of
rodents. Thank you for your time.
Chairman Pane: Rentata, could you address the free ranging before we go to the next public? 1
believe what you are proposing, they would be enclosed on all four sides and the top, and they
are not allowed to free range, am 1 correct?
Renata Bertotti: That is correct, they would not be allowed to be feeding, and in order for the
enclosure to be predator proof, it has to be covered by fencing on top too.
Rose Lyons, 46 Elton Drive: I guess the first thing 1 am going to say is what 1 was going to say
as my last comment. This discussion has been had numerous times at TPZ meetings,
informally. Now we have an application for a zoning text amendment to allow the keeping of
poultry, which in itself is fine, but 1 have not heard any discussions about any of regulations
other than right here tonight, and as far as the format for public hearing, maybe it is different
because of it being the TPZ being the applicant, but this back and forth is making my head spin.
People are asking you to go ahead and approve these regulations because they feel that it is
time that we do so, I'm asking you to wait because there are so many questions, not only from
the Commissioners, but from other people, such as myself as well. Number one, as far as it
stands right now, I'm opposed to it. It says poultry, such as chickens, turkeys, and ducks, well,
it also could include other domestic fowl. 1 think you have to have more of a discussion among
yourself, and come up with some solid regulations before you can move this forward. That's
just my opinion and those people that are already having chicken coops without getting permits,
1 think that they should be held to the same standards as those who are going to be, the people
who are going to have them in the future will be held to, and as far as the zoning permit, is it
forever? Isthereany kind oftime limitto it? 1 thinkthisisjustbeing rushedtooquickly. I've
mentioned in the past that this Zoom meeting and type of public hearing is not something that 1
am in favor of and for this to go forward, 1 think it would be a travesty that people aren't able to
speak out and say what they have to say. 1 have no problem with chickens. 1 know people who
have chickens and they take care of them, but you are always going to have people that are
going to follow the rules and then have people who aren't going to follow the rules. 1 want to
know what the repercussions are for those that don't follow the rules and I'd like to see things
spelled out a little clearer in these regulations before you close the public hearing and bring it to
a vote. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much.
Lynn Gregor, 120 Knollwood Road: l am opposed to having poultry in our town, actually for all
ofthe reasons that have already been mentioned, the rodents, the odor, flies and actually 1 think
it is unsightly. 1 want to be able to sit in my backyard and not be bothered by flies or an odor
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and I think many people, given the chance, they will take a mile, and this will be very hard and
an extra burden on our zoning to enforce. That's it, thank you.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much.
Dana Havens: Not a big fan of chickens in the back yard, however 1 know that there are lots of
residents in this town that have chickens in their back yards, and 1 am in favor of this mostly so
that now ifthey are not keeping their coops clean, and ifthey are invading on their neighbor's
space, there is a resource for their neighbors to turn it to get them to follow rules instead of
having to live with the stink, or the flies, anything like that. That's it.
Chairman Pane. Thank you very much.
Carol Anest, 33 Harding Avenue: I'm a member of the Town Council, but I'm speaking this
evening as a resident and taxpayer. I'm not opposed to having chickens but 1 do have quite a
few concerns on the regulations that are being proposed. My first is, you are talking about a
declaration of restrictions on condominiums, there are many subdivisions in this town that atso
have restricted covenants against having poultry on the property, so how are you going to
regulate that? Are you going to have the property owners do a search on the property to pull
their restricted covenants to provide to you? Also, in doing research, you said the minimum
number of poultry or chickens that you can have is three. It's not six. It is three. My concern
with that is a 40,000 square foot, you are saying less than, can have six chickens. What about
a 20,000 square foot property. A lot of these lots in the north end of town are quarter acres, so
you are talking about 20 to 22 thousand square feet. You are going to allow six chickens on
those when 1 can look at my neighbors yard from my deck and see three yards away from me?
1 think we need a couple more layers to either over forty, under forty, 1 think you need to go,
quarter to half, halfto three quarters, and so on and so forth, with three being for a smaller piece
of property. Also, what is going to be the height of these enclosures? How high can these
enclosures be? You are not setting forth that, you are just saying they need to be 200 square
feet in area. Somebody could have a ten or twelve foot high enclosure as well as a ten or
twelve foot high coop.
It is definitely a quality of life issue, especially with these smaller pieces of property. 1 really
think you guys before going to a public hearing, you should have talked among yourselves, you
guys should have come up with the regulation, you know, vetted it out between you, then
present them to the public and let the public speak, then answer the questions, 1 just think the
way that it is going about, I'm totally confused how this public hearing is going, but there are a
lot of issues that still need to be vetted out by you guys and you really have to take a hard look.
It's not a one size fits all type of regulation. Thank you very much for allowing me to speak this
evening.
Chairman Pane: You're welcome. I'm not sure why you are confused, this is a standard public
hearing, our Town Planner has presented a regulation to us that 1 believe is, she is proposing to
us to correct a problem that we have in enforcement and at this present time, as Commissioners
we're supposed to have open minds, neither for nor against. We have a public hearing, we get
public comments, and then once the public hearing is closed, then the Commissioners will
debate this and modify it if necessary and either approve it or deny it, or approve it with
conditions. So that is the procedure and it's like this for all public hearings.
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Cara Santoro, 93 Francis Avenue: I'm opposed to having this. A few things, five feet from a
property line, 1 would not want my neighbors on either side to have something five feet away. 1
agree with the woman about the flies, and the smell, and chicken poop is not like dog poop. I've
owned dogs for years and years. It's totally different, you have to be concerned about you
know, when it rains and what flows downward into your property. You could have the e-coli and
the salmonella, you could look it up on line, chicken liter, and you can see what it says there. 1
just wouldn't want to put up with that, and 1 certainly wouldn't want to put up with flies that were
there. Those are bigger flies, they bite, they are annoying. A lot of people like myself sit out in
their backyards during the summer, and people who have dogs, the dogs would probably go
crazy five feet away from, you know, they will be barking at the chickens and then the other lady
also mentioned about you know, they fly and if they, if you only have a four foot fence, they
could actually be into your yard and again, it's supposed to be enclosed, but everyone doesn't
follow the rules, and myself, 1 have a question, how did all of this come about to be something
that is getting discussed. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: I'll answer, the reason this came about is because it's been a nuisance
problem, there have been a lot of people who have chickens and they have them illegally and
it's been an enforcement problem. We've had many people come in over the last few years and
request us to look into this and that is why the Planner decided to propose this.
Cara Santoro: Okay, 1 can understand why you are looking into it, which is a good reason, but
you started out by saying it's a nuisance, people don't follow the guidelines, why would you think
it's any different if it becomes okay?
Chairman Pane: That's not what I said, what 1 said was, that they were ignoring our regulations
so with a set of regulations in place, that provides our enforcement agent a means to take
corrective action. This isn't a back and forth, unless you have a follow up question, do you have
anything else?
Cara Santoro: Nope, I'm atl set. Thank you for yourtime.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. Renata, do you have anything you want to add, or
Erik? Do you have anything you would like to add?
Renata Bertotti: Yeah, 1 do but Councilor Budrejko had.
Chairman Pane: 1 understand, but go right ahead and then we will go to the Councilor.
Renata Bertotti: First 1 will introduce to the public hearing an e-mail that 1 sent to you in the
packet, which is also posted with the packet and it came to my office on February 27th from
Heather Rosarri. Her address is 58 Whitewood Road, her e-mail is in opposition to this
proposal. 1 had sent that to you and posted it in the packet, so unless you didn't have a chance
to read it, 1 will just say that it is in opposition and there is no reason to read it since everybody
has had the opportunity to see it.
1 also received an e-mail dated March 9th, this one is neither in support or in opposition, but it
reads, and this one you didn't see so 1 have to read it into the record. Point number one, please
note (inaudible) which we also saw, the second one is 1 would like to see more specific wording
regarding prohibiting multiple dwellings, such as condominiums not being allowed. Living in a
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large condominium, residents may be under the impression that common ground is acceptable
for such an endeavor. Unfortunately 1 am unable to attend the Zoom, but do hope that this
request is taken into consideration. This was written by Sylvia P. Nolan of 209 Cottonwood
Road.
Now to just quickly answer some of the questions by Councilor Anest, 1 will say, first of alt with
regards to the covenants ofthe condo associations or subdivisions zoning does not have
jurisdiction to enforce private agreement between either condo associations, homeowners
associations and the property owners. So we would expect that the property owners check their
rules within their documentation, but that is really something that is out of ourjurisdiction. As it
is now, the subdivision property owners and the subdivision come in and asks for a shed, we
look into it under our zoning regulations, and enforce the zoning regulations. Ifthere is
something in a covenant that says you can't have sheds, that really isn't something we can
enforce.
The second point, with regards to the 20,000 square foot lots and smaller lots than 40,000
square feet. 1 propose that you, if the Commission takes this comment into consideration when
we discuss this, rather than doing three chickens for the lot that is 20,000 square feet and then
six chickens for the lot that is under 40,000 square feet, you perhaps could prohibit chickens
period or poultry period on any lot that is below a certain size that you consider a size where
you would not want to see these animals. The reason I said a minimum of three is because
chickens are generally sold in a set of six and then, my research has indicated that they come in
these groups of six and then over time, some die or something happens. When they do, it is
difficult to replace them by one, so if one chicken dies, like introducing one into a site with
perhaps two other ones creates some kind of issue between them, so that is why 1 would prefer
to keep it at six, but if we see that the lots are too small, we can prohibit them from small lots.
The height question that came up, there is no limitation on height, I'm not opposed to including
one, if the Commission wants. We also have a maximum height for the accessory structure
which I would normally use for this.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Renata, we are going to go to Margaret and then
Councilor Bedrejko next.
Margaret Banach: 1 apologize for the interruption before, 1 don't know how that happened. My
concern is pathogens because 1 know not such salmonella but e-coli and other pathogens are
associated both with chicken manure and also if chicken slaughtering is taking place, then the
raw chicken meat as well as some ofthe seed, can have pathogens in it, e-coli being one ofthe
most dangerous. 1 live down hill and there is a lot of water that comes from properties beside
me and behind me into my yard, and 1 have a garden with vegetables and 1 also am concerned
about pets walking through any water that could be contaminated, and whether they would be
dragging that into my house.
So has there been any research Renata, into the transfer of pathogens from chickens, and run
offwater into neighboring properties? That's my question and 1 guess 1 have to say, until 1 know
1 would be very opposed to this until 1 feel safe. The other nuisances that were mentioned, are
concerning to me in a small neighborhood. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. I'm not sure if Renata has the answers to those
questions or not, if not, then we will try to get those answers.
Margaret Banach: Thank you.
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Renata Bertotti: So just for the pathogens, 1 can't recall offthe top of my head, but yes, 1 did
look into that, and generally speaking, and 1 probably should look a little further into this
because this conversation will probably continue, with six chickens, the discussion is different
than when you have a farm. So what is commonly discussed when it comes to pathogens that
carry disease is what happens when you have a chicken farm, rather than a property that raises
just six. That also comes into play how clean these areas are kept, so as Commissioner
Sobieski suggested, we include something like a cleaning bi-weekly or something along those
lines.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Renata. Councilor Budrejko?
Gail Budrejko: Thank you. 1 have also done some research into this, certainly probably not as
extensive as you have Renata, but clearly there is a lot of information out there and there are a
lot of regulations and there is a lot interest, and there are a lot of models about regulations that
allow these backyard chickens, but can also do a betterjob of protecting neighbors from
nuisance or unnecessary hazards, and then comparing our proposal to those that you know, are
out in other communicates, nationally and in Connecticut, ours really need to be tightened up in
myopinion.
First of all, Newington is a very dense community. 1 think it would behold you to drive through
some of the older neighborhoods, particularly in the north end. Buck Street, Hawley,
Buckingham, Edmund, these lots are small, and the proposal of 40,000 feet for 12 chickens,
40,000 or less up to six, I'm just asking you again, please drive around town, all the
neighborhoods, and look at the lot sizes and the backyards adjoining and tell me if you think that
having a universal, one size fits all standard.
1 know regulating by lot size can be very difficult so using setbacks, that's a good way to do it.
Reasonable setbacks can ensure an appropriate distance from a neighbor but yet perhaps not
unduly restrict people who do have smaller tots who want to raise chickens. The setbacks that
are proposed in our regulation personally 1 think are too small. I've seen samples of regulations
with setbacks varying any where from ten feet to 500 feet, but our setback regulations, to me,
given the density of our community is too small, so perhaps something like one that 1 read which
1 thought was perhaps reasonable; coops or cages housing chickens should be kept at least 25
feet from the door or window of any dwelling or occupied structure, other than the owner's
dwelling. That protects the neighbor but ifthe owner wants to have it on their front porch, fine,
but it protects the neighbor. Twenty-five feet from the window or dwelling 1 think is the
minimum. Also, coops and cages should not be located within ten feet of a side yard line, nor
within 18 inches of rear yard lot tine. A lot of these smaller lots in the north end of town, l mean,
their back yards butt into each other, your patios are almost, you can shake hands from your
yard line. Please drive through town and look at this.
Regarding the number of chickens, many of the regulations that 1 saw that were specifically
addressed to urban or suburban back yard chickens limited them, regardless, to four to eight
chickens, certainly not up to 12. Definitely chickens are social animals and they need other
chickens, but given the density of our town, maybe we should start a little smaller, a maximum
of six, going up to 12 l think to start out l think is pushing it a little too much.
Regarding sanitation and waste disposal, 1 would suggest adding to that section, the waste
should be disposed of in an environmentally friendly manner. Unfortunately 1can just see
people dumping the waste in a wetland, people dumping the waste in the woods, so 1 think you
need to say it should be done in an environmentally friendly manner, and also 1 would suggest
adding something that says piling ofwaste material on the property is prohibited.
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Regarding the conversations that we have had regarding pest control, 1 suggest adding
something like, to minimize attraction of rodents and pests, the owner should eliminate potential
nesting and hiding places such as overgrown weeds and debris or rotting wood piles near the
coop and enclosure. You are going to attract rodents so let's make sure we get rid of some of
the hiding places for them.
Another thing, at the outset of your proposal, the keeping of poultry shall be allowed as a noncommercial accessory use. This is really crystal clear about the selling, with a cardboard sign in
front of your lawn, as a hobby. 1 don't know what the intent is of this Commission, but if the
intent is to prohibit sales or front yard, $5.00 or whatever, but 1 suggest you add something to
clarify that, the keeping of chickens or hens is for personal use and not for running a business.
The last thing, I'd like to talk about is harvesting, which 1 guess is a euphemism for slaughter. 1
must call it what it is. 1 have no idea why that is being proposed to be allowed in these
regulations. Many ofthe regulations that I looked at including Hartford for example, prohibits
slaughtering. So 1 would suggest that that not be allowed. Most of the people, many people
want to harvest the eggs, that's fine, but slaughtering, 1 think is going to open up a whole other
can of worms.
Regarding pathogens, 1 did come across some research that said in 2017 nearly every state
came across issues of salmonella and pathogens that had back yard chickens. We aren't
talking farms, these are backyard chickens. 1 think this is a little bit more of an issue that needs
to be looked at as this discussion continues.
Overall, 1 can't say that I'm opposed but 1 really do think that these regulations are not strong
enough if you decide to go through with this. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. Is there anyone else wishing to speak, either in favor
or against this?
Stacey Delow Renault, 7 Webster Court: Thank you very much. 1 just wanted to say that 1 have
been thinking of this for a while and 1 do feel very positively about the opportunity to allow us to
have and raise chickens. 1 do hear everyone's concerns and embrace that. 1 feel that with good
regulations people can then raise chickens without hurting other people I guess is what I'm
saying. I'm very for this. 1 think it will be a very healthy and wonderful way to kind of grow our
community and have chickens and eggs, and be able to do these things with regulations, and 1
feel that if we have the regulations properly, then even if we needed a permit to make sure that
we are following and abiding by the rules, that we will be able to do this properly, and honestly 1
don't care so much about the waste, 1 mean we are overrun by geese and chickens and 1 mean,
turkeys and all sorts of things. 1 couldn't even cross the road the other day because 1 had to
wait for 12 geese to go by and nobody seems to care about them in Mill Pond or in the
neighborhoods, we're not so concerned with that, but what we might be doing well within our h
own homes in our own regulated way, so I'm for this, and 1 feel that ifwe do have detailed rules
and regulations that we can make this work, and we can work with our neighbor to find a way to
make it work for everyone. 1 think this could be a very good thing.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Stacey for your opinion 1 appreciate it.
Mark Franz, 288 Williamstown Court:: Wow, what an amazingly biased for it, widely discussion
and I, this is very inter&sting because initially when 1 made my first comment they seemed to be
leaning for it, 1 tend to be a very neutral person anyway very moderate, and it seems that the
merits and demerits both balance out in my book. As a tax payer here in Newington, this is a
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really tough decision for all of the Commission. 1 don't envy anyone who has to make this
decision. 1 was just wondering, having said that, when is the vote going to take place for this
proposal that Renata has made? Is it going to take place tonight? Or will it be moved forward
to another time when we can all be collected, because this is amazing, and it's so polar. The
disease, the communicable disease and with the Covid 19 in town, regardless of how you look
at it, the pandemic is here and there are folks that are sensitive to this and do you want to add
more morbidity such as waste from a fowl, a chicken or a duck or a turkey. There is a lot to
ponder, so 1 really am not seeing much to either affirm or negate, either affirm the merits or the
demerits, but really very difficult to balance and 1 don't envy any of you that have to make the
ultimate decision, and in closing, will this go to a referendum come November? Thank you very
much.
Chairman Pane: Okay, let me see if 1 can answer a couple of your questions before we move
on. This does not go to referendum, this gets voted at TPZ level. This will not be voted on
tonight. There is a good chance that the Commissioners are going to want to leave this open
for at least one more meeting and so it won't be voted on tonight. We have, I'm going to allow
Rose Lyons to go ahead, and then Dana and then ifthere is anyone that hasn't spoken once
before, and then we will go back to the Commissioners.
Rose Lyons, 46 Elton Drive: With all due respect to you and to the Commissioners that have
spoken prior to us, the public speaking, 1 understand what the rules of procedure are for the
public hearing, you know that 1 have been at many ofthem. You know 1 also understand that
you have the right to change the format. 1 would request that if you are going to change it from
the public speaking afterthe application has been heard, and then there being rebuttal, and
then the public being able to speak again, that perhaps in the beginning ofthe public hearing
you could make that clear to those of us that are listening. As 1 said earlier, this Zoom public
hearing procedure is confusing enough, but when you read the rules for a public hearing and
then you have a give and a take and a back and forth, and you wonder why people are
confused and you actually question why they are confused? 1 suggest maybe you look at this
meeting on NCTV at some time in the near future and see how confusing it would be for you as
a public participant, not knowing the proper procedure. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Well, I'm surprised that you are confused. The only thing different that 1 have
done is that1have tried to answer some of the public's comments immediately with our town
staff. 1 don't have a problem with the way I'm running the meeting.
Rose Lyons: You don't normally have a problem with the way that you run the meeting.
Chairman Pane: Rose, your comments afterwards really are not necessary. This is not a back
and forth.
Dana Havens: 1 just wanted to address, 1 believe that Gail brought up some very good points,
and if you are going to adopt this ordinance where it can't be 25 feet from a door or window,
that to me could actually lead to some more problems, but my backyard neighbor keeps his
coop twenty five feet from his back door and window, it's going to put him right up to that five
foot barrier between the property lines and 1 have an entertainment corner in the back of my
yard, and now I'm going to have chickens as part of our entertainment, and kind of not what I'm
looking for. When you are looking at those regulations, 1 think that maybe five feet is not
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enough, ten feet definitely should be placed in there, and for the people who think that ten feet
is going to keep the smell away, that is definitely not going to happen ifthe neighbor is not
keeping the coop clean, it could be fifty feet and you are still going to smell it. As for flies,
chickens eat flies, so 1 kind of like that about chickens, that's about the only thing 1 like about
chickens, besides the taste, and that's it. Thanks.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. Before we go to the Commission, is there anybody
from the public, anybody that has not spoken yet that is either in favor or against, that would like
to state their opinion.
We'll go to the Commissioners now, and 1 would ask the Commissioners their thoughts on
keeping this public hearing open for another meeting or what they would like to do.
Commissioner Sobieski: 1 would like to keep the meeting open, 1 have a question though, 1 think
any letter, whether it is a letter for or against, should be read into the record. 1 think we need to
do that, not just send the letters to the Commissioners, 1 think all correspondence needs to be
read into the record. Thank you.
Commissioner Fox: 1 wanted to thank the Town Planner for the work that she did on this,
unfortunately there are a lot ofthings that need to be squared away before we close this
hearing, so 1 definitely would want to keep this open for one more meeting, and with all respect
Mr. Chairman, 1 have to agree with Ms. Lyons, and a couple of others that this was confusing.
All the years that 1 have been on this Commission, on and off, the proper procedure was
applicant, public, Commissioners and rebuttal, applicant rebuttal, like that. You have been
bending over backwards to make sure that people are well taken care of, but we should get
back to the original procedures. Thank you.
Commissioner Woods: 1 do believe that we need to keep it open, although 1 do believe this is
exactly how the process is supposed to work. Any proposed change to our regulations, in this
particular case because it requires a public hearing, we had the public hearing, give the public
what we are talking about to get their input. That is exactly what happened. Now 1 will admit,
there was some confusion due to the etectronics that were used, through Zoom to get people to
talk tonight, and 1 think you Mr. Chairman went above and beyond to try to accommodate that
snafu, that that happened is nobody's fault. To think that we could stop business now for over a
year is ridiculous as far as I'm concerned. So, Zoom is the way that we are going to do
business for the foreseeable future, it's here, people might not like it, but you know, there is
nothing we can do about it. This town needs to do business, we need to move our applications
forward, this was put in front of us because our Planner saw that there was an issue in town,
and people were bringing chickens into their homes and into their yards and we don't have a
regulation to cover this. Whether we move this forward or not, this is the starting point for that, 1
think we have a lot to talk about with the Planner over the next week or so, and then we will get
this back on our agenda, and then hopefully we can come to a resolution one way or the other.
Thankyou Mr. Chairman.
Commissioner Haggerty: Thank you Mr. Chairman. A lot of good points on both sides, certainly
thank the Town Planner for bringing this forward to the Commission. Again, to echo
CommissionerWoods, it means this is howwe conduct our business on Zoom, like it ornot, this
is how we do it. In a perfect world 1 guess that there would be the for, and then the people
against it, but it's the best that we have with our technology that is available. If it were me, and 1
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was publicly participating 1 would be appreciative if 1 was asking questions, and they were
immediately answered versus way down the line, so again, that is the process. 1 certainly think
we should keep this open to discuss further.
Chairman Pane: Thank you, 1 appreciate your comments. Are there any other Commissioners
that would like to speak concerning this?
Commissioner Lenares: Thank you. Just to weigh in 1 guess on this topic, I've been quiet all
along trying to listen and learn as much as 1 could. 1 didn't realize it was so in depth. To the
Planner, thank you, you opened my eyes to a lot of different things concerning chickens and to
some ofthe residents that spoke and to our Council liaison, you guys brought up great points,
and enlightened me on some things that 1 probably wouldn't have thought before could be an
issue. Just to wrap up some of the thoughts that were echoed before me, 1 don't have a big, 1
guess 1 should say, chicken, in this fight. I'm not huge favorite of chickens, and I'm not against
them. What 1 am in favor of, is the neighbor, on all sides. 1 guess we can try to make it so that
the person is able to have chickens and there is none, zero, zip, issues to the neighbor. 1 don't
know ifthat is possible. 1 really don't. If it is, that is a solution, but 1 don't feel any way we go on
this Commission, deny or approve, that everyone is going to be happy. Someone on some side
of the fence literally is going to be not happy. We have to try to make a decision for this board
to be as pleasing as possible to the greatest amount of people 1 would assume. 1 don't know
which way it is going to go. I'm learning as we go along, someone brought up a great
recommendation in terms of height, we talked about the setback from the side yard, 1 think that
is important, so basically, as of now, we have to try to make this as easy and pleasing for
everyone as possible.
As far as some of the comments that were made about the lax of the way that the meeting is
being run, 1 was on this Commission a long time ago, six, eight, years ago, and it was certainly
run in terms of organized and whatnot, and some times 1 felt it was too stern because when
people came in for a public participation, excuse me, for public hearing, and they spoke, some
of their issues weren't addressed, so Commissioner Pane, 1 think you are doing a hell of a job,
at least allowing some of the people to get a response. There have been times before where
they weren't able to. I'm not sure if it's right or wrong, and 1 get it, it might not be the way it is
exactly written but what it is, it's friendly, and it's a town meeting. People are coming and
voicing their opinions, 1 for one am listening to you, believe me and 1 am educating myselfwith
your opinions and 1 think we need to continue to do things like this. 1 think it's a respectful way
of doing business in the town, and listening to the people that are taking their own time, logging
on, or coming to a meeting, and in this climate, as CommissionerWoods said, this is the way
we are doing business whether you like it or not, so 1 don't like to hear when people say, well,
we should be doing this in person, 1 would love to do it in person, 1 really would, it would be
great, sit around the meeting, sit around the table and have at it. 1 love tistening to opinions and
1 try to learn from everybody, but right now this is the only way we can do it, and we can't just
shut people offfrom coming in and trying to do business in this town. So, thank you to the
people who commented, thank you to the Planner, Chairman, the Commissioners that 1 sit with,
and the liaisons from the Council, we all brought up great points and 1 hope we can do as best
as we can for the town. Thankyou.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Commissioner Lenares. Are there any other Commissioners that
have any questions or comments? 1 think it's obvious that we are going to leave this open. We
will leave Petition 09-21 open ifthere is no objection.
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APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioners Sobieski moved to accept the minutes ofthe February 24, 2021 Regular
Meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Fox. The vote was unanimously in favor
ofthe motion, with seven voting YEA.
IX.

NEW BUSINESS
A.

B Zoned Properties

Chairman Pane: We are reviewing the B zone properties, and Renata has given us some
things from our packet and I'll ask her for a report on this.
Renata Bertotti: Thank you. As I, as 1 indicated in my packet, 1 started looking at revisions of
our zoning regulations, in a more comprehensive way, and the way that we discussed starting
this process was to take it zone by zone and we will start with the commercial zones, and in
particular the B zone because it is one ofthose underlying zones that other business zones
refer to in sort of like a back pointing way.
1 have attached to you a list of properi:ies that are zoned B, and1 attached a list of permitted
uses in this zoning district. 1 have highlighted the ones in particular 1 wanted to talk about a little
bit, and tell you what I thought 1 should do with those, but then, feel free to interrupt me at any
point here, and all of this is up for discussion.
We have number of uses that we need to provide definitions for. You know, when we say, a
business, 1 don't really know what that is. Is a doctor's office a business, is a an accountant a
business, is a retail store a business, is you know, everything is a business, so I suspect, 1
suggest that we should provide a definition for uses such as business and professional offices
and trades. In particular trades, like what does that include? Is that a trade that is perhaps a
plumbing office that has you know, a couple oftrucks, parked in front oftheir business, is
landscaping a trade, or some form of landscaping, is that a trade. If it's an electrician does this
include storing ofthe electrician vans outside, a number ofthem, all ofthose are permitted as of
right, and normally would not require any kind of review in front of the Commission. So we
should probably define this and then talk about whether or not in the B Zone, which you see on
the list that 1 also included with this, the zoning district that has predominately smaller parcels.
They tend to be half an acre, or less, and they are surrounded by single family, generally, in
many instances, by single family homes. So, it's small lots that allow certain types of
businesses and surrounded by residential, so 1 do want us to talk about what we want to do with
the trades, once we define that, and I'm going to ask you to tell me when you are adopting this,
like what are the trades? How did that even start, rather than looking at regulations from say
Indianapolis, to tell me what they think trades are. It would be helpful to know what you thought
trades were when you put them in, if you know, if you were on the Commission, if you
remember.
Some other permitted uses are, for example, a construction trailer. 1 have not highlighted those,
but those are allowed everywhere, in every zoning district, they are allowed temporary, so that
kind of gives me a little bit, that's fine, we can only allow them for maybe up to three months, or
six, I don't remember off hand.
Then they are talking about the equipment storage. What could this include? Does this include
storing of commercial vehicles, that carry like plows, things like that? Do we have any farms in
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the business zone, 1 don't believe we do, so we could delete that perhaps because the parcels
are small, they are not very likely to have a farm, plus the location ofthese again, in the middle
of these residential areas, so having a small farm in the middle of a residential area, it's up for
discussion.
Material storage, are we talking indoor, outdoor, you know, what kind of visual impact that has,
again a small parcel.
Public libraries, should we just delete that? 1 don't believe we have any in the business zones. 1
would like to talk about outdoor related uses, perhaps we should remove the car sales from this.
You know, why do we require special permits for restaurants, perhaps this is something that
could be allowed as of right, in a business zone. Coin operated games, 1 don't even know what
that is, and I'm pretty sure we don't have that, so we could probably consider deleting, so, at
any rate, those are the kind of questions that 1 have. You have a funeral parlor and then there is
a mortuary, should wejust combine those, there is no definition for either. Outdoor dining,
obviousty we will talk about that later on too, but that is a big thing that we should consider as
well as how we treat restaurants.
Should we allow printers as of right, 1 mean those are kind of low impact type of thing, it
shouldn't require a special permit. Some of the things with the bulk regulations in the B zone to
consider would be in order to perhaps allow more development on a parcel without changing the
context ofwhat everything looks like, youknow, we right now allow in the B zone a building that
is up to 35' high, but two stories. Can we make it three stories, but not exceed 35' in height.
You know, if you can have a commercial building that can be like that, that would be one option.
1 also would like to revise perhaps the front yard requirement to be a little bit aligned with some
other buildings on the street, so we require 25 feet right now, which is fine, but if you are
building in a residential area and everybody has like their buildings closer to the street, perhaps
we can allow that on these parcels, building be located a little closer to the street as well, as
long as they align. The idea is that physical bulk does not change. As you drive down the
street, you don't notice that building as something that sticks out because it is seventy feet tall
or like right on the street tine.
So, that is where 1 would like to start with this. Now, this is a long conversation and it will take
more than one night obviously, and you know, 1 kind of want you to tell me how would you like to
start looking at this. We can start with the design, talk about these scale requirements, or we
can go sort of business by business. Ifthis use is okay in the zoning district, and if it is not, then
should be change it, and how should we change it.
By the way, this is going to be a very painful process because we will have to do this for most
other zoning districts too, but when you fix this one, half of our next zoning district will be fixed
because they will have the definitions and what not, so that will help. It's going to get easier as
we go into it.
Chairman Pane: Okay, Renata, are you all set for a minute?
Renata Bertotti: I'm all set for a minutes, absolutely.
Commissioner Sobieski: 1 looked at Renata's list here, and a lot ofthese areas are wetlands,
like the one by WRYM, that's all wetlands there, no matter what zone is it, you can't build in
there, and 1 looked at the other ones down here, and this one at 392, that's wetlands, even
thought it is residential, it's wetlands back there. It's a flood plain. Some of these we have to
look at, no matter what zones they are in, we can't say we are going to build on them. The
wetlands are definitely (inaudible) The two houses, one on Hartford Avenue and one is on Main
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Street, where somehow the back portion of the property is B zone, 1 think that needs to be
rectified and be made residential. 1 don't know how it happened, but it did.
The repair station, B & B at the corner of Dowd Street and Main Street, that floods with heavy
rains. 1 don't think, if I remember correctly, if that ever gets knocked down, 1 don't know if they
are ever going to be able to do anything with that because of the flooding. 1 know that the state
took several houses along Main Street because offlooding. 1 also looked into the (inaudible) in
the back of B & B and some of that is federal property and some of it is state property. 1 think,
you know, this map needs to be rectified and straightened out in my opinion. Like 1 said, it's
going to be very difficult to try to do anything in the wetlands. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Are there any other questions from the Commissioners? 1 think like Renata
said, this is going to be a long process for us to review, and 1 think we can look at this and have
more of a response for her at our next meeting.
Renata Bertotti: And 1 would appreciate that, so ifyou can think, ratherthan nowthinking about
a map amendment as well, you know, this is not something that is going to allow development
that is not allowed right now. What is prohibited to be developed, be it flood plain or wetlands,
stands. This process will not change that. What this process will change is if we start looking at
uses, and particular uses for example, and look one by one, banks, clubs, fraternal
organizations, are those kind of businesses, are those kind of commercial establishments okay
for this zoning district. Now 1 venture to say, of course they are, yes. We need to perhaps
define businesses better. You know, some of those that 1 brought up, like restaurants and
outdoor seating and things like that, should we be requiring a special permit for that or not.
Those are the kinds of questions that 1 want you to think about when you look at this list. The
zoning districts are, in context with the residential around it, and the fact that these are all like
smaller lots and 1 want you to look at the businesses that are there now. Just so we don't out
zone somebody by a mistake.
Erik htinckley: As far as any proposed development in a parcel with regulated areas still has to
go through the wetlands process. Whether they approve or deny, that is their purview.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Erik. Renata, it might be helpful ifwe actually haveourregulations
marked up on the page by page, the areas that you think in your opinion we should change and
why, and then we could go through page by page. Would something like that work?
Renata Bertotti: Yes.
Chairman Pane: It might be a little more helpful for some ofthe Commissioners. 1 think it would
be helpful for myself because then we can see the regulations, read the regulation, understand
what you are trying to correct and then we can take that into consideration and then we can get
everybody's opinion on it, so maybe we can start that process for our next meeting. Are there
any other questions from the Commissioners on this?
Commissioner Woods: This is for Renata, 1 think what you are looking for from us is to review
this list, and for us to give you our opinion on definitions, right? You want to expand on this, so
I'll use coil operated games, to me, okay that is like pinbalt machines, that kind of stuff, and my
gues is that is probably why it was regulated because depending on where the B business could
be in a residential area, the Commission might not want that. I'm assuming that's what it was.
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Those games don't even exist any more, right? Everybody has them now on their phone. 1 think
that is what you are looking for from us, to review this?
Renata Bertotti: What 1 am looking for from you, first of all, yes, if you can think of some of
these definitions, if you can see the business category or commercial category, that doesn't
exist, that should be deleted, why do we have them? Lastly, but perhaps more importantly is
should we require a special permit for the uses that we require special permits for, or should we
be looking into ways to move those to be permitted as of right, or permitted with site plan
approval, site parking and things like that.
CommissionerWoods: Okay, thank you.
Chairman Pane: Any other questions from the Commissioners? This is going to be a long
process, so this was a good start. Thank you very much Renata.
X.

OLD BUSINESS
A.

Newington Junction

Chairman Pane: We've started to talk about Newington Junction and I'll turn it over to our Town
Planner to give us a report on that.
Renata Bertotti: So 1 will ask James to display the map that I thought 1 would include in this, and
1 want, first of all to talk to you about this map, and then if we agree that this is more or less the
area that we want to be talking about when we talk about changing zoning at Newington
Junction, then before 1 go anywhere with that, 1 want to get in touch with the property owners on
this, because they are the ones that obviously have the most vested interest. So the area that 1
was looking to talk to you about essentially goes all the way from the bus station along the
industrial zone boundary, all the way up to West hlartford. 1 am particularly interested in going
this far because of Shepard Drive because 1 see an opportunity for development if somebody
came in, used this drive, combined some ofthese properties and some ofthe TOD type
development could actually happen here.
1 have marked certain lots with question marks because some ofthese, for example, this lot
here, I'm making like a big jag in the zoning district because there are houses on 25 and 29
Spring Street. There is actual houses. You know, we could make this line go straight down or
even include the 21 lot and allow the opportunity for some development on these residential
properties. Here again, when we start talking about this, my strong suggestion will be to you to
make this as an incentive zone. As a ?one that is not something that you must use and change
your business operation here or anything, whatever exists here should be allowed to continue.
The incentives zone should be something that if marketing drives development here, the
property owner will sell it, will move their business elsewhere and then somebody can come in
and do some property development.
1 have several properties that are not zoned industrial, but are vacant right now and could
provide access, you know, these are all privately owned properties, or state owns, at any rate,
the town doesn't own them, so we don't have control, so 1 kind ofwould like to perhaps this
parcel here, 1 would like to include this parcel, and this as well because including all ofthose
which are currently vacant into this zoning district would allow access road building, something
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into a development if somebody cannot get these properties but can assemble something here
but the Spring Road is super narrow and unusable.
Chairman Pane left the meeting and the meeting was run by Commissioner Havens.
Renata Bertotti: So 1 really don't have other things to say except, what do you think of this map,
is this the general area, do you have suggestions to perhaps go someplace else with this, like
how do you see this?
Commissioner Havens: Does anyone have any comments regarding what Renata just said?
Commissioner Woods: Renata, what about the east side of the busway, you haven't highlighted
any of that. Just because it is all developed, is there a reason that you haven't included that?
1 see that as prime for some redevelopment in that area. Some of it is, 1 think ready, with the
right opportunity and the right incentives for an area along Day Street to get re-developed.
Renata Bertotti: It might very well be. It's not as if (inaudible) to this station, like up Francis but
you know, I'm okay with including that. I'm also thinking perhaps we start with a section and
see what transpires there. Unless we have an area and a map and a regulation in place, if
there is an interest in Day Street it's kind of easy to add 1 think.
CommissionerWoods: Okay, and 1 would agree, 1 think you are one hundred percent correct on
the Shepard Drive, that's the key piece, that opens up to a huge parcel, there's a lot of land
there and spills over obviously into West Hartford, but 1 think there is a lot of potential there for
some TOD development in there and 1 like the direction that you are going in.
Renata Bertotti: And then the other idea was to keep this somewhat manageable for me
because 1 do want to reach out to the property owners here and tell them that we are starting to
have these discussions and then in that conversation perhaps they will reconsider the Day
Street area or some other area.
CommissionerWoods: Okay, thank you.
Chairman Pane returned to the meeting.
Commissioner Sobieski: 1 would like to see, to utilize what we have near West Hill. Because of
the traffic volume we have there, my thought was, maybe some type of store because we have
the senior citizen development over there, some type of coffee shop in there, where the seniors
could walk across the street and actually sit down, have coffee, whatever. 1 also would like to
see the town approach the DOT and reopen the tunnel under Willard Avenue. The reason why 1
would like to see that is because this would give the seniors a way of getting underneath Willard
Avenue without having to cross the highway, and get into say, a mini grocery store, something
like that. We tried to do that when, remember with Best Market, and unfortunately the market
closed. That was the big draw for the seniors from the high rise.
1 think it would be easier to get money to buy some additional property to develop in there. 1
would also like to see, buffer around all of these properties extended to 75 feet, because there
is noise down there, 1 keep hearing that from people on Francis Avenue. 1 know when the state
went through and they developed all of that area there, people coming down, when they see the
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signal change, they (inaudible) on Francis Avenue, so I'd like to see something like that. As far
as the Shepard Drive area, Shepard Steel is still there with a functioning business and Spring
Street is too narrow to widen. To do that you would have to take the houses in the area. We
have to be cognizant ofthe residential area and 1 would not want to see an additional driveway
in there because 1 think you would have problems pulling out, especially at a high volume traffic
light. If we an utilize this signal, and it's a four way signal, by re-arranging and taking a couple
of pieces over there, moving the parking lot a little bit up, you could actually get access into the
lots, 1 guess 134, 120, and 116 and develop in that area. That'sjust mythought and see, like l
said, the seniors have no way to grocery shop ifthey don't drive, or hop a bus and go to West
Hartford to Stop and Shop and take the bus back. So, 1 thinking if we could find a way to make
them more tolerable for them.
Commissioner Gill: What is happening with the West Hartford end there? What is West
Hartford doing or not doing?
Renata Bertotti: In this particular location, I'm not aware that they are doing anything.
Commissioner Gill: With the properties in West Hartford?
Renata Bertotti: 1 don't believe they are doing anything in this particular location. They have a
well established industrial districtthat has opposed any kind ofTOD mandated district. That is
my understanding from their Planner in West Hartford.
Chairman Pane: This would be similar to the Fenn Road TOD area. It would be an incentivized
overlay zone to provide incentives t6 developers to possibly come in and buy a section of the
property up to redevelop, is that correct?
Renata Bertotti: In my mind it is going to be your regulations always, but in my mind that is the
best approach to do because you know, you don't want to say to a business that has been
operating here and is functioning and fine, now you must leave because we are doing this other
thing, right? Now all of a sudden you are a legal non-conforming and you have problem
expanding or anything like that, but what you want to say to the business is, this is another
option for you and if you can talk to your neighbors or you can figure out how to work this, and
make some money off of it, knock yourself out. We will help you. So that is kind of the idea
here, that development comes in as driven by market hopefully.
Chairman Pane: They have a choice to either keep the existing underlying zone or use the
overlay zone. For instance, over on Fenn Road 1 don't think some ofthe projects up there are
taking advantage ofthe TOD, but then some are taking advantage of it.
Renata Bertotti: Yes, and 1 would do something similar here.
Chairman Pane: Okay, thank you. Commissioner Fox?
Commissioner Fox: At any rate, 1 see here ifthe plan is implemented here a great opportunity,
if you waht to call it a village district, along the lines of what Commissioner Sobieski was saying,
small shops, walking distance for senior citizens, an enterprise zone. 1 also have to agree with
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Commissioner Woods, Day Street is just ripe for development over there, especially 1 guess it's
on the east end. So, there are a lot of possibilities here as long as you don't go overboard.
Commissioner Woods: 1 was just going to expand on Commissioner Sobieski's remarks about a
connection point. It would be really good to get a connector to go underneath Willard Avenue,
which we had at one point, but for whatever reason the State, when they were doing the busway
actually took it out. There must have been a reason for that, I'm not quite sure, but there had
been a connection point to get from the west to the east, or obviously east to west without
having to go over the road. 1 think that would be a wonderful idea if we could work with the
State and possibly get something back in that area to accommodate pedestrian flow in and out
safely. That is the key here, because traffic is flowing at probably a higher rate of speed than
any of us would like, and I'm sure our Newington police Department will do a really good job
enforcing it, but people just have a tendency to drive faster than they should, and we need to try
to make that as safe as possible. If we do start to develop this area, we will need to make sure
that we can get pedestrians from the east side to the west side, especially since there are some
businesses there already, and that will probably expand. 1 think it's a good idea that the
Commissioner brought up and 1 just wanted to expand upon it. Thank you.
Commissioner Sobieski: The tunnel is still there. The backfilled it with dirt and what they did
was they sanded it on either side and put in a concrete wall, so the tunnel is there and someone
in the town should know why it was taking out. That's all 1 know.
Chairman Pane: Any other Commissioners have any questions? So, is everybody in
agreement that Renata has marked out would be the main area, and possibly a little bit of a,
expanding a little bit more towards Willard Avenue and then there is the possibility of expanding
on Day Street. That's what I'm getting from everybody.
CommissionerWoods: Yes, actuallywhen you stepped out Mr. Chairman, 1 thinkwhat she
wanted to do was the start with this, right and see how it goes, so this is a really good starting
point.
Chairman Pane: Okay, very good. So we have a good start on this Renata, is there anything
else?
Renata Bertotti: No, so 1 will start, so just for the future, my first point of business here will be to
try and get in touch with as many property owners as we can in this district by phone calls and
perhaps going there and figuring out who is who, and from that point on, I'll get them at least to
know that this is something that they should be tooking out for in our meetings and then we can
start by outlining the district and we can start by actually looking at the regulations a little bit in
the future meetings as well.
XI.

PETITIONS FOR PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULING
A.

Petition 10-21: Special Permit (Sec. 8.6) to allow Liquor Store at 288 Fenn
Road.

Renata Bertotti: This is a liquor store that used to be a liquor store.
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Erik Hinckley: 1 believe the address is 28B, not 288. It's in the Fenn Road Stop and Shop
Plaza, 1 believe it is where A & P Liquor used to be.
XII.

TOWN PLANNER REPORT

Renata Bertotti: 1 have two things that 1 wanted to bring up to your attention. The first one, 1
sent that e-mail yesterday to you guys to the possibility of expiration of emergency order by
Governor Lamont that is going to happen if he lets it expire, it will expire on April 20th. This is an
emergency order that effectively suspended statutes in order for us to be able to then waive
some of our regulatory processes when it comes to outdoor dining and retail. As you saw in the
e-mail that 1 sent, one ofthe town's around us, West Hartford is proposing an amendment to
their ordinances to their charter. In our case, I'm trying to decide whether we should do the
ordinance, go the ordinance route, or we should do a very short term simple zoning regulation
amendment. Again, it's would be a proposal to change the regulations to essentially, under
where we say, the outdoor dining is allowed by Commission's approval to have a separate
section that says, you know, except as, you know, and then do effective April 20th ending on
December 31st. This particular rule that requires outdoor dining be approved by the
Commission is suspended, it is approved administratively and that power, administrative power
ends in December. By then 1 would hope that we would have a regulation in place that then is
better addressed in these uses coming forward. 1 had reached out to a number of restaurants
on our list, probably two thirds of all the restaurants and eating establishments that we have,
and spoke to many people. There is a lot of interest in having these outdoor dining facilities.
People buy stuffto do this. They have to buy tables and chairs and umbrellas and all kinds of
things and to approve that now, and then in April say, you can't have it isreally ill advised. So, 1
think today 1 sort of decided in my own head, perhaps we just do this zoning regulation
amendment.
There is also a bill proposed, and tomorrow 1 will e-mail you a list of bills that 1 would like you to
look into that are pending public hearings next week. They were really just issued. One of them
is a bill that a bunch of Planners yesterday got together and just rushly put it in, to essentially
extend this order, but by the time, if the State approves the bill, and when they do, by the time
that the bill becomes effective, 1 think it is going to be long past April 20th. So, it kind of kills my
timing on it, so that is the thinking on that end right now. I'm going to e-mail you some kind of
simply regulatory proposal fairly soon, and just schedule the hearing as soon as possible.
Chairman Pane: 1 think you second idea instead of an ordinance changing our zoning
regulations is a better idea. 1 think we can control it a little bit more. As everybody understands,
this is so we don't interrupt the businesses that need outside dining part way through the
season because of the Governor dropping the executive orders. 1 think this is, at least in my
opinion, that this is extremely important for the small businesses and 1 would like to encourage
the Commissioners to have Renata work on this and get this up as fast as possible. In the
meantime, we can address out outside dining regulations more comprehensively and maybe
have a conversation on whether or not we are going to have it as a special exception, or
whether we will allow outside dining as a matter of right. I'll open it up to the other
Commissioners. Are there any comments or suggestions on what Renata is proposing? Is
everyone in agreement?
CommissionerWoods: I'm in full agreement, obviously this is a much more expedient way to
make sure that we ensure that our restaurants can continue with their outdoor dining, they
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probably would not be able to under our current regulations, but I like this, 1 think she has
expanded it to December which makes sense if we get a good fall, if they can go that long, and
then hopefully they can come down and we have revised regulations, 1 don't want to say better,
1 want to say revised regulations and that Covid is behind us 1 hope at that point.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Commissioner Woods. Any other Commissioner comments or
questions?
Commissioner Lenares: I agree, 1 think it's important for the Planner to move forward with this
and 1 think it's an excellent way to do it to expediate the process. As I spoke last time, 1 kind of
got on my soap box and 1 preached that these businesses, some of them, probably wouldn't be
here today if this Commission didn't take the steps necessary last spring to allow these
businesses to do business and by extending it even further for some reason, hopefully when
Covid is behind us, even to extend them into the fall a little bit, like you said until December to
allow them to do additional business that they wouldn't normally be able to do with allowing
them to increase some oftheir outdoor dining seating and stuff like that, and then in the man tie,
as CommissionerWoods stated, to revised, revisit and make better our regulations that we have
to support these businesses. 1 think it's very important, so I'm behind this one hundred percent,
I think it's important for whatever we can do to allow these businesses to continue to do
business is very important, so thank you.
Commissioner Sobieski: 1 am totally in agreement, as long as we make sure that all comply
with the fire codes and safety regulations for outside, other than that, 1 would like to see this go
forward.
Chairman Pane: Any other comments? Renata you can go on to your next item.
Renata Bertotti: The other thing that 1 wanted to let you know, and 1 will e-mail you tomorrow a
list of these bills that are pending. 1 think the public hearing is next week, it's either Monday or
Wednesday, but Desegregate Connecticut through the Planning and Development subcommittee of the state has filed three, in particular bills that will be heard next week. One of
them deals with TOD's and the enabling statutes; the other one requires training ofthe
Commissioners. The training will be mandated, 1 mean, ifthis is adopted as proposed, the
training will be mandated starting 2024. You already go through training, but the change now
will be that each Commissioner will be required to undergo annual training of a certain amount
of hours and the Town will have to report that this training has been done by each
Commissioner. The last one has to do with accessory dwelling units, you know, allowing them
as of right, prohibiting essentially towns from devaluating them. So, 1 will send you the list, 1 will
encourage you to read them, if you have questions, you can call me, you can submit your own
testimony at the hearing, either in person or in writing by e-mail, and if you want me to comment
1 think I can't comment on behalf of the Commission at this time, because we want to meet
before that, but at any rate, if you see some way for me to participate in this, let me know.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Renata. Any questions for the Town Planner?
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COMMUNICATIONS

Renata Bertotti: The only communication that 1 will submit is the CRCOG staff report and we
have included that in our report.
XIV.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (For items not listed on the Agenda. Speakers limited to
"Raise Hands" function.
two minutes. Use the Zoom

Gail Budrejko: Within the past hour 1 have received two communications from residents
regarding the bills that are going to be talked about next week, and 1 guess the public hearing is
ten o'clock on Monday, but these are pretty significant bills.
It's basically taking over, limiting some ofthe zoning functions of local zoning committees.
Somebody sent me something about mandating every town for four unit apartment buildings as
a right on every lot; prohibiting towns from considering (inaudible) in zoning regulations,
mandating towns consider the impact of their zoning regulations on other towns; prohibiting
towns from using the preservation of land values as a factor on zoning regulation; mandating
every town allow accessory apartments on every lot, so this seems very significant. So 1 do
encourage you as our zoning experts to please review Renata will be sending you tomorrow
and hopefully comment, and 1 have spoken, when our state legislators came, the regulations
regarding TOD.
Newington is very small, we have 13 square miles, but we have three TOD sites, so it's going to
impact. Any regulation impacting TOD is going to impact us triple because we have several
TOD sites, so please review these very carefully. Thank you.
Renata Bertotti: If 1 may, just for anybody who is watching this, just a few clarifications, it is my
understanding that when it comes to TOD the requirement, the four zoning, the four units for
development, that is only in a TOD area and it's defined by dimensions and it's one TOD area.
It's not going to be three in Newington, it is going to be one. Now, 1 haven't had a chance to
fully read the bill yet, but to my understanding, that's how that would play out. The accessory
dwelling units are town wide, so that would be something that we cannot un-regulate on the
town level, but most ofthese are placed around the transit station. That, they did exclude from
the statutes the town's ability to regulate by character, they defined that, and then included
language that talked about physical characteristics of the site, so for example, when 1 was
talking about the business zone, and keeping buildings the same height but allowing perhaps
three stories instead oftwo, within the same height, that is what 1 believe this bill will do, it will
allow you to consider the environment, but it will not allow towns to misuse character and apply
it to people who live there, like that was the underlying thing behind the character.
Gail Budrejko: Thank you for the explanation, but you know, the devil does rely on the details,
so 1 think it's very important that we read these bills very carefully and not trust the state
legislators interpretation of it. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Back to public participation.
Chris Clancey, 130 Lamplighter Lane: As l previously mentioned this is myfirst call and I'm kind
ofjust treading water here, and 1 called to speak on a few concerns that 1 have relative to
speeding on my street. I'm a Newington resident, grew up on the golf course, been here
forever, moved onto Lamplighter a couple ofyears ago, and now have started noticing
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excessive speed, the rate at which the cars are traveling on the road is quite excessive. The
volume is one thing, we can't control that, but as far as the speed, I'm hoping that there is
something that can be done. 1 have small kids, all under the age offour, and I'm not the only
one on my street like this, there are many kids, joggers in the neighborhood, and 1 currently am
working from home, and now 1 get to see the volume and the speed at which people travel. It is
approximately four to six cars a minute, half of those cars are going well over the speed limit.
I'm just more concerned about the walkers and the kids in the neighborhood, and I'm sure there
are plenty like me on the street. 1 knowjust this past weekend there was someone traveling
down Lamplighter at the hill there, I'm right at the bottom ofthe hill, there is a guard rail there, a
twenty foot guard rail, however was driving was coming down at a high rate of speed,and they
actually folded over five out of ten of the i-beams that are driven into the ground to support this
guard rail. Completely folded them over in half and popped the rail off comptetely and it landed
in my yard. That is concerning because I'm assuming that you have to be going pretty fast to do
that. There are other numerous occasions that, when it's icy out, cars are flying down the
street, and I've seen four cars within an hour do a complete 180 and have to turn around. It's
just been a bit of a circus, so 1 just wanted to bring it to your attention and basically just wonder
what are my steps as far as mitigation efforts, you know, some permanent mitigation efforts on
the street to kind of curb the speeding because 1 don't want to be calling in, and the neighbors
don't want to be calling into the Police Department and wasting their time and resources, I'm
sure they have better things to do, butjust kind ofwant to know, from a conversation with you,
and look for any avenues that 1 can take to get this conversation started and hopefully can get
some where to curb the speeding, and that's it.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much. Renata, what you would recommend him contact the
Police Department or the Town Manager, is that correct?
Renata Bertotti: 1 would probably start with the Police Department. If you don't get a response
or a speedy response, perhaps you can contact me directly and 1 will pass it over to the Town
Manager. It is not necessarily a zoning issue, but it clearly is an issue.
Erik Hinckley: The PD should have the legal traffic authority, contact Chief Clark, and that is the
kind of thing that they would review.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Renata, thank you Erik, so Chris, contact the Police Department
and make them aware of it, and that will be a good starting point and then if you have any
problems, contact the Town Planner for further action.
Cara Santoro, 93 Francis Avenue: 1 guess a lot of things wilt change if the state does pass that
law, and it will definitely affect Newington Junction, but 1 did have some other questions about
things that you brought up as far as Shepard Drive and all ofthat, which 1 know is commercial,
but then the map showed the other street that appeared to have three houses right at the
beginning of Spring Street. Was that correct, what was on the map?
Chairman Pane: 1 believe so, we'll try to answer your questions when you are all set.
Cara Santoro: Okay, 1 was just concerned about, what is going to happen with that? We didn't
have any discussion now about West Hill Automotive, that hasn't even come up tonight, and
that is my biggest concern. One of the questions that 1 had is like, how did atl this get started
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thatwe should use that section to put housing or some other kind of businesses there, 1guess
the State didn't pass the law, but that is what is out there, so 1 have to correct myself. Sorry
about that. 1 am concerned as to what the plan is for West Hill Automotive, what is over there,
you know, last time at the meeting 1 didn't speak at the last meeting, but they showed all these
pictures of houses that looked like they came from Wethersfield Avenue or the north end of
Hartford, and thought they were a good design. 1 think some kind of business over there would
be good, 1 mean if he is absolutely decided that he is going to do something and sell his
business, 1 mean, who is going to own any of this. There are so many questions about there
about what is going to happen right there at Newington Junction and that wasn't even
mentioned tonight.
Chairman Pane: Okay, anything else?
Caro Santoro: I'd kind of like to get those questions answered.
Chairman Pane: I'm going to try, 1 just wanted to make sure you were all set.
Renata Bertotti: So, the zoning discussion doesn't make anything happen. It allows, especially
if we do this as an incentive zone, it allows for certain kind of development. TOD generally, and
in this area particularly, the housing, residential uses will make sense, because that is what will
be supported by residents who can then perhaps walk down to the bus station, if that becomes
a thing. West Hill Automotive, they are included in this, just as all the other industrial back here,
and the three houses on Spring Street, 1 think those are the ones that 1 marked with a question
mark. 1 have kept them out for now, from this district, but one ofthe questions was whether or
not 1 should include them in this, to be consistent with the zone line. Again, the zoning
designation themselves do not develop anything, do not change, it's not like the Town is going
to go there and start buying. It is another tool in a tool box for the property owners, if they want
to use that to perhaps change what is in the district.
Caro Santoro: 1 did have.....
Chairman Pane: Caro, this isn't a back and forth, I'll let you ask this question, go ahead.
Caro Santoro: This is a question that 1 forgot to ask. So as far as TOD goes in the town, 1
thought that we were at about nine percent or so of meeting our ten percent goal, as far as the
housing. So, how many units short are we of meeting that ten percent?
Chairman Pane: That has nothing to do with this, really.
Caro Santoro: One reason it does is because we keep saying we want some kind of housing
over there, and I'm just trying to find out how many more units do we need in town so maybe we
can get to ten percent?
Chairman Pane: It's not necessarily all affordable housing, it could be housing, it could be
businesses, we're just trying to provide an incentive for people for, to improve the area.
Renata Bertotti: The only thing that, the two things are completely separate. The ten percent
has to do with the state statute that talks about affordable housing and this is designated,
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regulated affordable housing. The TOD zone is a zoning district, a flexible zoning district that is
near a transit stop that allows residential, mixed uses and kind of provides for more pedestrian
orientated development. One thing has very little to do with the other. Some times TOD has
housing that is affordable, but sometimes they don't. That being said though, Caro, ifyou have
questions, you know you are always welcome to just reach out to me directly at the office. I'm
there, 1 pick up my phone.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Renata, thank you Caro.
Margaret Banach, 145 Starr Avenue: l wanted to thank Councilor Budrejko for her comments
about the bills that are proposed. 1 know that Renata mentioned something about whether you
can have her say something or participate, they are, 1 heard on the radio this afternoon, it was a
representative who was encouraging all residents to participate and that you have to register by
3:00 p.m. on Sunday, 1 don't know how you register, but anyway, but what she was very
alarmed about was that this could allow the State to override local zoning and let the State
decide what can happen within a half mile of a transit station, and transit oriented development,
so that certainly would affect our town, I certainly hope that we can get many residents to call in
and be opposed to that idea.
1 am concerned about the fact that we are under ten percent but 1 heard in another place that
only thirty towns in Connecticut actually meet the ten percent and 1 wonder why in your
participation raise the fact that there is a lot of land outside, we are very densely populated, but
why can't there be some creative solutions to provide affordable housing in areas that aren't so
dense, and provide transportation, whether, 1 have a sister, a cousin 1 mean, who lives out in
Columbia, takes a bus to Hartford and she does just fine in getting to work. 1 think having
commuter lots and things like that can be proposed so that you can meet the affordabte housing
in areas where there is less density. We have a lot of traffic concerns in our town, that is raised
all of the time, and 1 hope that we can address that and oppose this bill to allow the state to take
control of our property. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much Margaret.
Mark Franz, 288 Williamstown Court: Mr. Chairman and Members ofthe Commission, two
things. 1 always wondered what was going to happen with the Best Market property, by the post
office there, this is going to sound totally out of reasons, but why not put like a (inaudible), an
amusement park there for the families. I go from Newington to Hartford and 1 see, I've lived in
this house for over thirty years, and was talking to a couple of people and why not use that
whole parcel of land for an amusement park. Just a thought.
Number two, in terms of Newington Junction, right where New Park Avenue is, in the Elmwood
section ofWest Hartford, where the former Pontiac dealership was, they put a, the Town of
West Hartford put up a three or four luxury building, 1 don't know if it is TOD, but a building
there, and 1 was just wondering if something similar to that West Hartford model could be done
in Newington, in the Newington Junction area. Just those two thoughts, thank you very much.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much for your comments, Mark. Is there anyone else from
the public that would like to speak?
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REMARKS BY COMMISSIONERS

None
XVI.

CLOSING REMARKS BY THE CHAIRMAN

Chairman Pane: 1 think we did a fine job on the meeting and we'll continue this hard work that
we have,and 1 want to thank everybody.
XVII.

ADJOURN

Commissioner Fox moved to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Havens. The meeting was adjourned at 9:47 p.m.
Res^ectfully submitted,
Addis,
Reco ling Secretary

